
* GVR encourages members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner.

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, August 23, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Beth Dingman, 
Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, Richard Sutherland, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. Member Comments – regarding Consent Agenda and/or Non-Agenda Items – Speakers are asked to provide their name
and GVR member number. Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

5. Presentations
A. Quarterly Financial Report (Webster)

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit (Austin)
B. Board Affairs (Crothers)
C. Fiscal Affairs (Carden)
D. Investments (Lawless)
E. Nominations & Elections (Dingman)
F. Planning & Evaluation (Bachelor)

7. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: June 28, 2023
B. Financial Statements:

1) May, June, and July

8. Action Items
A. Approve Updated Committee Responsibilities (Somers)
B. BAC Recommended Board Approval for Membership Change Fee (Crothers)
C. Contract Approval for Security Cameras (Somers) 

D. Board Officer Assistant Treasurer Election (President)

9. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

10. Adjournment



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, June 28, 2023, 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Laurel Dean (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

Director Absent: 0 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director) 

Visitors: 45 including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2:03pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the
roll; quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Blake seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report:
Reminder for the Board: The Board adopted a Credo last year which states the Board will
listen with an open mind and a desire to understand different ideas and perspectives. In the
Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) Part 2: 2.1.1.C - The Board is responsible for governing in a
manner that emphasizes strategic leadership rather than administrative detail. It is to be
proactive in its decision making and maintain a clear delineation between staff and Board
roles. 2.1.1.C.6 - Focus on the intended long-term goals of the organization, not on the
administrative and programmatic means of maintaining the goals. The Board’s connection to
the operation of the organization is through the CEO and all operational and departmental
questions and issues shall be directed to the CEO. 2.1.1.C.8 - Value and honor differences and
encourage diversity in viewpoints. Part of 2.1.1.C.9 - Individual Directors shall not undermine
Board decisions.

4. CEO Report
• Desert Hills Fitness Center was delayed due to the HVAC system, but has now arrived

and been installed.  Final inspections will by July 7 – 14. A week later there will be a
ribbon cutting and grand opening.

Consent Agenda 7.A.1

1



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

• Glass Arts space at Santa Rita Springs is moving forward with framework up; plumbing,
mechanical, and electrical work continues; interior walls being painted; and the
masonry work and the roofing for the covered exterior is near completion. This project
is on schedule for completion in October.

• Del Sol Clubhouse has partitions installed in the upper floor restroom and final
inspection is scheduled. Remodel work in the main room is almost completed. The
construction documents for the lower area, billiards room, the upper floor game area,
and the parking lot are being completed by engineers and consultants. Once
documents are completed permitting will be done through Pima County. Once
permitting is completed this will go out for bid.

• Canoa Hills Center is closed for the summer due to a major remodel. The pool deck is
being resurfaced; demolition work in the lobby, restrooms and locker rooms has
begun.

• East Center Pickleball Courts are closed for repairs and recoating until July 2.
• Desert Hills Tennis Courts are closed for repairs and recoating on July 12 and reopen

on July 24.
• Woodshop 2023 Club funding request was completed, upgrade for woodshop vacuum

system, and is waiting for club review.
• Del Sol Clubhouse will hold a soft opening on July 4 with a viewing of a baseball game

at 11am on TV, sandwiches and bowls of snacks will be available.
• The Father’s Day event on June 16 was attended by 122 people. Great positive

feedback for this event. Next event like this will be at Las Campanas in September.
• Two trips to Rocky Point are planned for July and October. Both were sold out in days.

There was an informational session held on these types of trips with 200 members
attending. Another Rocky Point trip is scheduled for February during the time of the
grey whale migration.

• Custodial update: experimenting with contracting out custodial with a private
company for Las Campanas and East Center, and looking at Desert Hills and possibly
Canoa Ranch. The initial assessment for contracting out custodial makes sense with a
minimum savings of 10 percent. The product is better with cleaner results and less
complaints. This pilot project will continue to be explored for now. If a decision has
been made to fully outsource custodial, staff will recommend to the Board a contract
for approval.

5. Member Comments:  0

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit – Chair Austin did not have anything to report.
B. Board Affairs – Chair Crothers’ report was received and placed on file.
C. Fiscal Affairs – Chair Cardin did not have anything to report.
D. Investments – Chair Lawless did not have anything to report.
E. Nominations & Elections – Chair Dingman’s report was received and placed on file.
F. Planning & Evaluation – Chair Bachelor’s report was received and placed on file.

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Boyett seconded to approve Consent Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

2



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

A. Minutes:
1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: May 24, 2023
2) BOD Work Session Minutes: June 21, 2023

8. New Business
A. Approve Camera Survey Questions

MOTION: Director Gilbert moved, Director Bachelor seconded to accept the survey as
presented by staff. After further discussion, Director Bachelor removed her second and
Director Blake seconded the motion.

MOTION TO AMEND:  Director Hillyer moved, Director Austin seconded to amend the
survey with three parts: 1) Add two sentences to bottom of page 9 of the Meeting Book
– “The Board rejected the $153,000, 123-camera plan by a 7-5 vote in April 2023, with
several Board Members expressing concerns about both the cost and the scope of the
proposal.  The Board also voted, 7-4, to ask GVR staff to survey GVR members on this
issue.” 2) Move to add one option to the 4 options on page 10 – 5th option to say
“cameras only at the entrance to the 12 ladies locker rooms at GVR.” And 3) Deletion of
the word security in front of security cameras, as to Question two. Instead Question 2
should read:  Do you support the installation of cameras.

Director Boyett asked the three-part amended motion from Bart be voted on separately. 
Director Hillyer (mover) and Director Austin (seconder) agreed to have it voted on 
separately.   

VOTE Amendment 1 – Passed: 7 yes / 5 no (Bachelor, Boyett, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless) 

VOTE Amendment 2 – Failed: 6 yes / 6 no (Bachelor, Boyett,  Dingman, Garneau, Gilbert, 
Lawless)  

VOTE Amendment 3 – Passed: 7 yes / 5 no (Bachelor, Boyett, Dingman Gilbert, Lawless) 

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Lawless moved, Director Bachelor seconded to remove 
“one” in Question 3 and remove “only” in the questions.  
Passed: 7 yes / 5 no (Austin, Cardin, Crothers, Dean, Hillyer) 

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Crothers moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the 
last sentence on page 9 to state “Staff recommended the Board award this contract and 
approve up to $200,000 for security cameras.”   
Passed: 7 yes / 5 no (Bachelor, Boyett, Garneau, Gilbert, Lawless) 

AMENDED MOTION PASSED: 7 yes / 5 no (Bachelor, Boyett, Dingman, Garneau) 

Amended Motion: Approve the motion as amended to direct the GVR staff to conduct a 
survey of the membership in July 2023, using the attached background information and 
questions staff provided include in the background, last paragraph these two sentences: 
“the board rejected the $153,000, 123-camera plan by a 7-5 vote in April 2023, with 
several Board Members expressing concerns about both the cost and the scope of the 
proposal. The Board also voted, 7-4, to ask GVR staff to survey GVR members on this 

3



GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful 
manner. 

issue”; delete the word security from security camera in question 2; remove “one” from 
Question 3 and “only” from the questions to provide more options to choose; and on the 
background page add “approve up to $200,000 for security cameras” at the end of the 
statement “Staff recommended the Board award this contract “up to $200,000 for 
security cameras.” 

B. SpringPointe Resolution for Voluntary Deed Request
MOTION: Director Gilbert moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve and sign the
resolution drafted by the GVR attorney, to be added to the Corporate Boundary
Document as Exhibit 41.
Passed: 7 yes / 5 no (Austin, Carden, Crothers, Dean, Hillyer)

C. Approve CPM Change Part 2 Section 2.3.1.D.2 Work Session
MOTION: Director Garneau moved,  Director Austin seconded to change the work
session to the second Wednesday.
Passed unanimous (Director Hillyer stepped away from the meeting)

D. Approve CPM Appendix Section 3: 1.3.5.B.1.e.1 Removal of East Center Pool
MOTION: Director Lawless moved, Director Blake seconded to remove the language in
the CPM Appendix Section 3: 1.3.5.B.1.e.1) and leaving e. Maintenance Repair/Replace
Reserve Fund and the Table.
Passed: unanimous (Director Hillyer stepped away from the meeting)

E. Discussion and Possible Action on All Options for West Center Improvements to
Accommodate Lapidary/Woodshop/Artisan Expansion
MOTION: Director Garneau moved, Director Gilbert seconded to direct staff to work
with the architect to explore all expansion possibilities at West Center to accommodate
the expansion of Lapidary, Woodworking, and Artisans, with the understanding that the
concept may include relocating the Billiards room at West Center.
Passed: unanimous

Member comments: 1 

9. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Blake seconded to adjourn the meeting at
4:18pm.
Passed: unanimous

4



2

Consent Agenda 7.B.1

5



3 
6



15

 7



16

 8



17

 9



18

10



19

11



20 
12



21

13



22

14



23 
15



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

CPM Part 3 General and  
Committee Responsibility Updates 

Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: August 23, 2023 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board of Directors 

Action Requested: 
Approve the proposed changes to CPM Part 3 Committees Section 1 General, Section 2 Board 
Affairs Committee, Section 3 Fiscal Affairs Committee, Section 4 Planning and Evaluation 
Committee, Section 5 Audit Committee, Section 6 Nominations and Elections Committee, and 
Section 7 Investment Committee. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
During the facilitated and dedicated Work Session on committee improvements in May 2023, 
the Board, with the facilitation of a consultant, Jenny Carrillo of Alexander/Carrillo 
Consulting, discussed needed improvements to GVR’s committee structure. Ms. Carrillo 
suggested that the Board review all of its committees, paying particular attention to the 
purpose and responsibility assigned to each committee. She, along with Board members, 
discussed the possibility of eliminating some of the committees, if necessary, since 
committees should not perform the duties of staff or act in place of the Board since their 
purpose is to advise the Board on policy matters. It was decided that the Chair of each 
committee, along with each staff liaison and the CEO would develop recommended changes 
to committees as a whole as well as individual committees for Board consideration.   

The Committee responsibility updates were discussed at the August 16 Work Session and are 
before the Board for approval. 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the proposed changes to Part 3, Section 1 – 7 as written.
2) Approve the proposed changes to Part 3, Section 1 – 7, with amendments.

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the changes to the CPM in Part 3 Committees as recommended by the 
Board Affairs Committee.  

Action Item A.

16



Attachments: 
1) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 1 General – Redline and Clean
2) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 2 Board Affairs Committee (BAC) - Redline and Clean

a) Part 6 Clubs Affected by BAC Changes – Redline and Clean
3) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 3 Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) – Redline and Clean
4) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 4 Planning and Evaluation Committee (P&E) – Redline and
Clean
5) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 5 Audit Committee – Redline and Clean
6) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 6 Nominations and Elections Committee (N&E) – Redline
and Clean
7) CPM Part 3 Committees Section 7 Investment Committee – Redline and Clean

17



PART 3: COMMITTEES 

SECTION 1 – GENERAL 

3.1.1 Committees of The Board of Directors 
A. Standing and Special/Ad Hoc Committee Chairpersons must be

Directors. Chairpersons shall be nominated by the President,
subject to approval of the Board. Each Committee will have a staff

liaison selected by the CEO.
B. Each Director shall have the opportunity to, and be encouraged

to, serve on at least one Committee, and not more than two (2).
The Board President is ex officio to all Committees, except for

Audit Committee and Nominations & Elections Committee. As
soon as possible, Directors shall inform the President of their
committee preferences and/or willingness to be a committee

chair.
C. Board standing Committee Chairpersons shall remain active until

the appointment of new Committee Chairpersons.
D. Members are encouraged to apply for committee positions and if

possible, serve for multiple years. It is recommended that chairs

seek to have at least 1/3 new members each year and limit
committee participation to no more than six (6) consecutive

years.
E. The Board will establish the responsibilities of the Committees as

an advisory role to the Board for policy recommendations. Each

Committee shall make policy recommendations to the Board for
consideration. Committees serve in an advisory role to the Board.

Committees do not have authority to create policy, contract for
services, expend or commit funds, or contact Board-appointed
contractors such as, but not limited to, attorneys or auditors.

F. Standing committees are suggested to be a minimum of five (5)
members including the Chairperson and one other Director, and

a suggested maximum of nine (9) members.
G. Committee members shall be GVR members in good standing and

must submit an application for a Committee appointment. The

President, Chairperson, and CEO will review applications. After
review of the applications the Chairperson will select Committee

members and inform the Board of the appointments at the April
meeting.  Staff, as liaisons to the Committees, will be selected by
the CEO. Vacancies on the Committee during the year may be

filled by the Chairperson after consulting with the President.
H. Neither a Committee Chairperson, nor a committee may direct

staff. Responsibilities of Committee Chairpersons, along with
Committee members and staff liaison, are to identify goals in

conjunction with the Strategic Plan; provide Committee action
plans to the Board for approval; provide, at least, quarterly

Attachment 8.A.1 Redline

18



updates to the Board; and at year-end identify accomplishments 
of the Committee and continuing tasks for the next year.    

I. The President may establish Special or Ad Hoc Committees
comprised of members/assigned members in good standing,

Directors and administrative staff as assigned by the CEO.
J. Committees are not required to follow Robert’s Rules of Order.
K. Meetings shall be set by the Chairperson and shall be conducted

as needed, but not less than quarterly.
L. Directors may attend any Committee meeting, whether open or

closed.
M. All materials for the Committee meeting will be available online

three (3) business days before the meeting except for closed

meeting materials. If the deadline for item consideration is not
met, the item will be placed on the next scheduled Committee

meeting agenda.
N. Committee meetings will be open to all members, but may be

held in closed session, at the discretion of the Committee or

Subcommittee.

19



PART 3: COMMITTEES 
SECTION 1 – GENERAL 

3.1.1 Committees of The Board of Directors 
A. Standing and Special/Ad Hoc Committee Chairpersons must be

Directors. Chairpersons shall be nominated by the President,
subject to approval of the Board. Each Committee will have a staff
liaison selected by the CEO.

B. Each Director shall have the opportunity to, and be encouraged
to, serve on at least one Committee, and not more than two (2).
The Board President is ex officio to all Committees, except for
Audit Committee and Nominations & Elections Committee. As
soon as possible, Directors shall inform the President of their
committee preferences and/or willingness to be a committee
chair.

C. Board standing Committee Chairpersons shall remain active until
the appointment of new Committee Chairpersons.

D. Members are encouraged to apply for committee positions and if
possible, serve for multiple years. It is recommended that chairs
seek to have at least 1/3 new members each year and limit
committee participation to no more than six (6) consecutive
years.

E. The Board will establish the responsibilities of the Committees as
an advisory role to the Board for policy recommendations.
Committees do not have authority to create policy, contract for
services, expend or commit funds, or contact Board-appointed
contractors such as, but not limited to, attorneys or auditors.

F. Standing committees are suggested to be a minimum of five (5)
members including the Chairperson and one other Director, and
a suggested maximum of nine (9) members.

G. Committee members shall be GVR members in good standing and
must submit an application for a Committee appointment. The
President, Chairperson, and CEO will review applications. After
review of the applications the Chairperson will select Committee
members and inform the Board of the appointments at the April
meeting.  Staff, as liaisons to the Committees, will be selected by
the CEO. Vacancies on the Committee during the year may be
filled by the Chairperson after consulting with the President.

H. Neither a Committee Chairperson, nor a committee may direct
staff. Responsibilities of Committee Chairpersons, along with
Committee members and staff liaison, are to identify goals in
conjunction with the Strategic Plan; provide Committee action
plans to the Board for approval; provide, at least, quarterly
updates to the Board; and at year-end identify accomplishments
of the Committee and continuing tasks for the next year.

Attachment 8.A.1 - Clean

20



I. The President may establish Special or Ad Hoc Committees
comprised of members/assigned members in good standing,
Directors and administrative staff as assigned by the CEO.

J. Committees are not required to follow Robert’s Rules of Order.
K. Meetings shall be set by the Chairperson and shall be conducted

as needed, but not less than quarterly.
L. Directors may attend any Committee meeting, whether open or

closed.
M. All materials for the Committee meeting will be available online

three (3) business days before the meeting except for closed
meeting materials. If the deadline for item consideration is not
met, the item will be placed on the next scheduled Committee
meeting agenda.

N. Committee meetings will be open to all members, but may be
held in closed session, at the discretion of the Committee or
Subcommittee.

21



Recommend modifications in organizational policies and governing 

SECTION 2 - BOARD AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

3.1.1 Committee Members 

To the extent possible, Tthe Board Affairs Committee shall consist 
of the Chairperson, who shall be a Director, and GVR members who should 

have knowledge of Corporate Bylaws and Policies. 

3.2.1 Duties and Responsibilities 
A.  

values to help guide the Board in achieving its strategic goals. Assist the 

Board in effectively carrying out its governing functions in such a 

manner so as to clearly delineate the roles and responsibilities between 

governance and management. 
B.  

documents of The Corporation. 

C. Endeavor to maintain a community link with residents of the greater

Green Valley community. CEO function – Part 4, 4.1.1.D 

D. Review and recommend Board action on group applications for GVR 

“Club Status.” 

E. Where appropriate, recommend modification to GVR Club policies, in 

keeping with the best interest of The Corporation. 

F. Review the Articles of Incorporation, the CPM, and the Bylaws for

updates and revisions. Changes may be editorial, necessary for 

continuity between governing documents, necessary due to changes 

made in Board or Committee meetings, or proposed by member input. 

G.  

their review and appropriate action. 

H. Develop pro and/or con statements for ballot proposals being submitted 

to the membership for a vote. GVR Members are strongly encouraged 

to present their positions to the Committee for consideration, and 

possible inclusion, in the pro and con statements. 

I. If a Committee wishes to make changes to the CPM: 

1. The Committee will provide a paragraph stating the purpose and

goal of the proposed changes to the Board Affairs Committee 

(BAC). 

2. If the BAC approves the purpose and intent, BAC will forward to
Formatted: A. 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.75", Hanging: 0.38", 

Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + 

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 1.25" + 

Indent at: 1.5" 

Commented [NM5]: Removed at the BAC June 12, 2023, 

meeting. 

Commented [NM3]: Removed at the BAC June 12, 2023, 

meeting. 

Commented [NM2]: Per staff – thoroughly vetted by staff 

and CEO – staff will recommend to the Board for approval. 

Commented [NM1]: Carol would like A, B, F, and G 

combined into one. I already eliminated F and rewrote G to 

combine F and G. A and B could be rewritten into one or B 

could be added into G. ie: BAC reviews and recommends 

revisions, then forwards all BAC proposed revisions…. 

Review and recommend revisions, when appropriate, to the governing 

Commented [NM4]: Changes made at the BAC June 12, 

2023, meeting. 

Style Definition: List Paragraph: Indent: Left: 0", 

Hanging: 0.75", Outline numbered + Level: 3 + 

Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: 

Left + Aligned at: 0.44" + Indent at: 1.03", Tab stops: 

3.69", Left 

Forward all BAC proposed revisions of the Articles of Incorporation or 

Bylaws to staff for submission to legal counsel for appropriate actionto 

of governing documents to staff for review. Staff will decide need for 
legal counsel or to go directly to the Board for review and appropriate 

action. the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws to legal counsel for legal 
review, editing and, opinion, including particulary concerning the any 

effect on tax-exempt status. After consultation, the specific wording of 

the recommended modifications shall be Any BAC approved change to 

the CPM which staff determines needs legal review will also be 

submitted. When Should legal counsel reviews recommend a proposed 

revision to a governing document, it will be returned to Committee for 

final review before going being presented  forwarded to the Board for 

Attachment 8.A.2 - Redline

22



GVR’s Legal Counsel to draft changes. 

3. The draft changes will be presented to BAC and the Committee

submitting the request. 

4. If approved by both the BAC and the Committee, the draft will be

forwarded as a recommendation to GVR Board for approval. 

F. If a committee, member or staff would like to have the BAC review a 

change to the CPM or other governing documents before it is taken to 

the Board, the requested change and rationale should be sent to the 

chair and staff liaison of BAC at least a week prior to the next BAC 

meeting. 

Formatted: A., Justified, Indent: Left: 0.5" 

Commented [NM6]: Scott and Carol said to eliminate I 

Commented [NM7]: Suggestion from Chair Crothers to 

replace “I” 

23



SECTION 2 - BOARD AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

3.1.1      Committee Members 
To the extent possible, the Board Affairs Committee shall consist 
of GVR members who should have knowledge of Corporate Bylaws 
and Policies. 

3.2.1 Responsibilities 
A. Recommend modifications in organizational policies and governing

values to help guide the Board in achieving its strategic goals. Assist the
Board in effectively carrying out its governing functions in such a
manner so as to clearly delineate the roles and responsibilities between
governance and management.

B. Review and recommend revisions, when appropriate, to the governing
documents of The Corporation.

C. Forward all BAC proposed revisions of the Articles of Incorporation or
Bylaws to staff for submission to legal counsel for appropriate action.
Any BAC approved change to the CPM which staff determines needs
legal review will also be submitted. Should legal counsel recommend a
revision to a governing document, it will be returned to the Committee
for final review before being presented to the Board for appropriate
action.

D. If a committee, member or staff would like to have the BAC review a
change to the CPM or other governing documents before it is taken
to the Board, the requested change and rationale should be sent to the
chair and staff liaison of BAC at least a week prior to the next BAC
meeting.

Attachment 8.A.2 - Clean

24



SECTION 2 - GVR CLUBS 

6.2.1 Organization 
A. Any group with thirty-five (35) or more GVR Members, interested in

pursuing a particular field of interest, consistent with the mission of
GVR, may join together and form a GVR Club, as long as a similar club

doesn’t already exist within GVR.
B. All members of a group requesting “Club Status” must be members of

GVR.

C. The group may formally request that the Board grant them GVR “Club
Status,” which entitles the group to a scheduling priority for reserving

GVR facilities on an annual basis.
D. A club application, available online and at the Administrative Offices,

must be submitted to the GVR Club Liaison.

E. The Club Liaison shall review the completed application and submit a
written recommendation to the CEO or designee.

F. If the CEO agrees that the club request is in order, a copy of the club’s
information is given to the BAC Chairperson, for inclusion in the next 
scheduled Committee meeting, agenda permitting. 

G.F. Representatives of the prospective club shall be invited to the 
Committee meeting to speak on behalf of the club. 

H.G. If the BAC When the CEO or designee approves the prospective 
club for recommendation to the Board, representatives from the club 
shall be invited to attend the next meeting of the Board to speak on 

behalf of the club. 
I.H. If the Board approves the request for club status, the Club Liaison 

will notify the Club President. 
J.I. If a prospective club request is denied the CEO shall notify the Club

Representative in writing.
K.J. The newly established club will operate independently of GVR but 

will be required to follow all rules and guidelines set forth by the Board. 

L.K. The Club Liaison will retain a club file in his/her office. 

6.2.2 Membership/Guests/Monitoring 

M.A. Club membership shall be open to all GVR Members and 
they shall be entitled to participate in any meeting or activity. 

Clubs may not grant honorary membership, or their equivalent, to 
anyone who is not a GVR Member. Any GVR Member who is 

refused admission to a club shall notify the Club Liaison at once. 
All Club Officers shall be club members. 

N.B. Clubs may establish prerequisites for joining their activity such as 

training or an orientation. 
O.C. Clubs that fail to maintain at least twenty-five (25) active 

members jeopardize their “Club Status.”  If a club’s membership falls 
below 25, the Club Liaison will contact the Club President and offer 
suggestions on ways to increase membership. If efforts to increase 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Attachment 8.A.2.a - Redline

 
25



membership are not successful, the Club Liaison will advise the CEO. If 
necessary, the CEO will bring the issue to the BAC, who shall make a 

recommendation to the Board as to whether Club Status should be 
revoked. 

P.D. If it is determined by the Club Liaison that there is a fifty-percent 
(50%) or more crossover in activities and/or interests in two or more 
clubs of the same type, those clubs may be consolidated.  

Q.E. Clubs may not affiliate with any national, state, or regional 
organization that requires GVR members to join its external 

organization. Optional membership in such organizations is allowed. 
R.F. Clubs may grant guest privileges, at their discretion, to guests of 

GVR Members and, if authorized by the Board, other non-GVR members 

upon payment of a guest fee to GVR.  
S.G. GVR Clubs shall establish an effective monitoring system to 

ensure that only GVR Members and eligible guests attend meetings and 
activities of the club. 

T.H. GVR Clubs that present performances to the membership and 

general public will be permitted to use non-GVR individuals in 
performing or production roles under the following circumstances: 

1. Club members with the necessary qualifications are not available.
2. Approval must be obtained from the GVR Club Liaison on a case-

by-case basis.
3. Each non-GVR individual must sign an agreement acknowledging

that he/she will not be covered by GVR Corporate Worker’s

Compensation nor listed as an additional insured in any GVR
commercial insurance policy.

4. The agreement will note the terms and conditions of their
involvement in the production and will not last beyond the specified
performance(s).

5. Should the individual be a minor, then the parent/guardian must
sign the agreement on his/her behalf.

6. GVR will permit student participation in a production with the
acknowledgment and sponsorship of the student’s school
administration.

U.I. GVR teams participating in competitive events must be comprised 
solely of GVR Members.  

V.J. The non-GVR guest policy for competition or participation in clubs 
is as follows: 
1. GVR Clubs may host competitive events and allow non-GVR

members or guests to participate. The club must notify GVR's Club
Liaison prior to the scheduled event. Documentation outlining the

nature of the competition(s) will be required for each event. Non-
GVR members or guests are only authorized to use GVR facilities
associated with the event, including warm-ups/practice time.

2. League play may occur if there is a reciprocal agreement to play at
each other's facilities.

3. Outside of league play, Clubs may grant participation to guests at
their discretion, as long as those individuals are eligible guests as

26



defined in Part 1 Section 2: 1.2.2. 
W.K. Non-GVR Member Club Participant Policy: 

1. Clubs listed as Social or Dance Clubs on GVR’s website may allow
non-GVR members to attend their events.

2. Non-members must sign a waiver.
3. Non-members will pay an event fee of no more than one half of the

daily guest fee approved by the Board. Staff will work with the

Clubs to establish the event fee if requested.
4. Clubs will remit fee and record of attendance to GVR Club Liaison.

6.2.8  Club Reporting and Records Management 

A. All GVR Clubs are required to sign and submit an Annual Club

Agreement which outlines the club’s responsibilities to GVR and what

they can expect from GVR in return. If a club refuses to sign or does

not fulfill their requirements, GVR may require the club to meet with

the CEO or designee. BAC for review.

27



SECTION 2 - GVR CLUBS 

6.2.1 Organization 
A. Any group with thirty-five (35) or more GVR Members, interested in

pursuing a particular field of interest, consistent with the mission of
GVR, may join together and form a GVR Club, as long as a similar club
doesn’t already exist within GVR.

B. All members of a group requesting “Club Status” must be members of
GVR.

C. The group may formally request that the Board grant them GVR “Club
Status,” which entitles the group to a scheduling priority for reserving
GVR facilities on an annual basis.

D. A club application, available online and at the Administrative Offices,
must be submitted to the GVR Club Liaison.

E. The Club Liaison shall review the completed application and submit a
written recommendation to the CEO or designee.

F. When the CEO or designee approves the prospective club for
recommendation to the Board, representatives from the club shall be
invited to attend the next meeting of the Board to speak on behalf of
the club.

G. If the Board approves the request for club status, the Club Liaison will
notify the Club President.

H. If a prospective club request is denied the CEO shall notify the Club
Representative in writing.

I. The newly established club will operate independently of GVR but will be
required to follow all rules and guidelines set forth by the Board.

J. The Club Liaison will retain a club file in his/her office.

6.2.2 Membership/Guests/Monitoring 
A. Club membership shall be open to all GVR Members and they shall be

entitled to participate in any meeting or activity. Clubs may not grant
honorary membership, or their equivalent, to anyone who is not a GVR
Member. Any GVR Member who is refused admission to a club shall
notify the Club Liaison at once. All Club Officers shall be club members.

B. Clubs may establish prerequisites for joining their activity such as
training or an orientation.

C. Clubs that fail to maintain at least twenty-five (25) active members
jeopardize their “Club Status.”  If a club’s membership falls below 25,
the Club Liaison will contact the Club President and offer suggestions on
ways to increase membership. If efforts to increase membership are not
successful, the Club Liaison will advise the CEO. If necessary, the CEO
shall make a recommendation to the Board as to whether Club Status
should be revoked.

D. If it is determined by the Club Liaison that there is a fifty-percent (50%)
or more crossover in activities and/or interests in two or more clubs of
the same type, those clubs may be consolidated.

Attachment 8.A.2.a - Clean

 
28



E. Clubs may not affiliate with any national, state, or regional organization
that requires GVR members to join its external organization. Optional
membership in such organizations is allowed.

F. Clubs may grant guest privileges, at their discretion, to guests of GVR
Members and, if authorized by the Board, other non-GVR members upon
payment of a guest fee to GVR.

G. GVR Clubs shall establish an effective monitoring system to ensure that
only GVR Members and eligible guests attend meetings and activities of
the club.

H. GVR Clubs that present performances to the membership and general
public will be permitted to use non-GVR individuals in performing or
production roles under the following circumstances:
1. Club members with the necessary qualifications are not available.
2. Approval must be obtained from the GVR Club Liaison on a case-

by-case basis.
3. Each non-GVR individual must sign an agreement acknowledging

that he/she will not be covered by GVR Corporate Worker’s
Compensation nor listed as an additional insured in any GVR
commercial insurance policy.

4. The agreement will note the terms and conditions of their
involvement in the production and will not last beyond the specified
performance(s).

5. Should the individual be a minor, then the parent/guardian must
sign the agreement on his/her behalf.

6. GVR will permit student participation in a production with the
acknowledgment and sponsorship of the student’s school
administration.

I. GVR teams participating in competitive events must be comprised solely
of GVR Members.

J. The non-GVR guest policy for competition or participation in clubs is as
follows:
1. GVR Clubs may host competitive events and allow non-GVR

members or guests to participate. The club must notify GVR's Club
Liaison prior to the scheduled event. Documentation outlining the
nature of the competition(s) will be required for each event. Non-
GVR members or guests are only authorized to use GVR facilities
associated with the event, including warm-ups/practice time.

2. League play may occur if there is a reciprocal agreement to play at
each other's facilities.

3. Outside of league play, Clubs may grant participation to guests at
their discretion, as long as those individuals are eligible guests as
defined in Part 1 Section 2: 1.2.2.

K. Non-GVR Member Club Participant Policy:
1. Clubs listed as Social or Dance Clubs on GVR’s website may allow

non-GVR members to attend their events.
2. Non-members must sign a waiver.
3. Non-members will pay an event fee of no more than one half of the

daily guest fee approved by the Board. Staff will work with the

 
29



Clubs to establish the event fee if requested. 
4. Clubs will remit fee and record of attendance to GVR Club Liaison.

6.2.8  Club Reporting and Records Management 

A. All GVR Clubs are required to sign and submit an Annual Club
Agreement which outlines the club’s responsibilities to GVR and what
they can expect from GVR in return. If a club refuses to sign or does
not fulfill their requirements, GVR may require the club to meet with
the CEO or designee.

 
30



SECTION 3 – FISCAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

3.3.1 Membership Considerations 
To the extent possible, the Committee will include members knowledgeable 
about of capital projects and/or experience in financial management. 

3.3.2 Responsibilities 
A. Review and assist in presentingrecommend the annual budgets,

including any fees or dues changes to the Board. Such review will consist

of recommending funding, financing, and usage of Reserves., the
disposition of the Revenue/Expense Adjustment, and the amount of the
Capital Fund Cash Account.

B. Monitor progress toward achievement of annual fiscal objectives.
C. Review financial statements (operationsOperational Statmemenet of

Financial Position and Statement of Activities and, capital purchases
analysis and balance sheet), and report to the Board, as appropriate.

D. Coordinate with the GVR Audit Committee.

E.D. Review and recommend to the Board policy changes if necessary 
to assure financial control. 

F. Recommend the establishment and the amount of Tenant Fees,
membership dues, Initial Fees, Transfer Fees, and assessments.

G. Recommend the financing method to be adopted for specific major

projects recommended by the Planning and Evaluation Committee (P&E)
for Board approval.

Coordinate with the P&E Committee as it relates to proposed
expenditures for capital improvements.

H.E. Recommend the disposition of Operational Surplus or Deficit. 

Attachment 8.A.3 - Redline

 
31



SECTION 3 – FISCAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

3.3.1 Membership Considerations 
To the extent possible, the Committee will include members knowledgeable 
of financial management. 

3.3.2 Responsibilities 
A. Review and recommend the annual budgets, including any fees or dues

changes to the Board. Such review will consist of recommending
funding, financing, and usage of Reserves.

B. Monitor progress toward achievement of annual fiscal objectives.
C. Review financial statements (Operational Statement of Financial Position

and Statement of Activities and capital purchases), and report to the
Board, as appropriate.

D. Review and recommend to the Board policy changes if necessary to
assure financial control.

E. Recommend the disposition of Operational Surplus or Deficit.

Attachment 8.A.3 - Clean

 
32



SECTION 4 – PLANNING & EVALUATION COMMITTEE 

3.4.1 Membership Considerations 
To the extent possible, the Committee will include members knowledgeable 
about capital projects planning and evaluation processes and/or experience 

in financial management. 

3.4.2 Responsibilities 
A. To Meet quarterly, or as necessary, and to review, evaluate,  and discuss

recommend on an annual basis, the capital the capital projects for the
capital improvement plan evaluation requirements, and any documents
required for club and miscellaneous planning capital projects funding

requests submitted for review to the P&E Committee to the Board as
necessary, per the CPM.

B. To be knowledgeable of the Strategic Plan, and Long-termFive-Year
Capital Plan, andPlan and Center Assessment Survey to ensure that all
planned capital projects funding recommendations comply with these

plans.
C. To identify issues and trends that could contribute to the update of

aforementioned plans.

Attachment 8.A.4 - Redline

33



SECTION 4 – PLANNING & EVALUATION COMMITTEE 

3.4.1 Membership Considerations 
To the extent possible, the Committee will include members knowledgeable 
about capital project planning and evaluation processes. 

3.4.2 Responsibilities 
A. Meet quarterly, or as necessary, to review and recommend the capital

projects for the capital improvement plan to the Board, per the CPM.
B. To be knowledgeable of the Strategic Plan and Five-Year Capital Plan to

ensure that all planned capital projects comply with these plans.

Attachment 8.A.4 - Clean

 
34



2 

SECTION 5 - AUDIT COMMITTEE 

3.5.1 Membership 
To the extent possible, Tthe Audit Committee shall consist of two or more 

GVR members who should have knowledge of financial reporting and 
internal control procedures. 

3.5.2 Responsibilities 
A. The Audit Committee functions in the capacity of an overseer of GVR’s

financial reporting process and internal controls. The committee is the
conduit between GVR andThis oversight is conducted by review of the

reporting and communication from a qualified the independent auditing
firm. The Committee is not involved in The Corporation’s daily

accounting functions.
B. The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. To recommend a CPA firm to the GVR Board to act as The
Corporation’s independent auditor.

2. To review the independent auditor’s terms of engagement.

3. To review the results of each audit including opinion qualifications
or expectations.

4. To review the auditor’s management letter and GVR management’s
response.

5. To review issues and disputes that may arise between GVR

management and the independent auditor during an audit.
6. To review the adequacy of internal financial controls with GVR

management and the audit firm.
6.7. Items explicitly authorized by the Board of Directors. 

Attachment 8.A.5 - Redline

 
35



2 

SECTION 5 - AUDIT COMMITTEE 

3.5.1 Membership 
To the extent possible, the Audit Committee shall consist of two or more 
GVR members who should have knowledge of financial reporting and 
internal control procedures. 

3.5.2 Responsibilities 
A. The Audit Committee functions in the capacity of an overseer of GVR’s

financial reporting process and internal controls. This oversight is
conducted by review of the reporting and communication from a
qualified independent auditing firm. The Committee is not involved in
The Corporation’s daily accounting functions.

B. The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:
1. To recommend a CPA firm to the GVR Board to act as The

Corporation’s independent auditor.
2. To review the independent auditor’s terms of engagement.
3. To review the results of each audit including opinion qualifications

or expectations.
4. To review the auditor’s management letter and GVR management’s

response.
5. To review issues and disputes that may arise between GVR

management and the independent auditor during an audit.
6. To review the adequacy of internal financial controls with GVR

management and the audit firm.
7. Items explicitly authorized by the Board of Directors.

Attachment 8.A.5 - Clean

 
36



SECTION 6 - NOMINATIONS & ELECTIONS COMMITTEE 

Membership Committee Members 
A. The Chairperson shall be a Director, recommended by the President and

approved by the Board. 

A. There shall be at least one (1) other Director on the Committee, and a
minimum of two (2) GVR Members who do not serve on the Board selected 
by the Committee Chairperson. Committee members shall be GVR 

Members, selected by the Committee Chairperson. The Committee 
members selected by the Chairperson shall represent various geographic 

areas to the extent possible. Committee members will serve a one (1) 
year term, provided however, any member of the Committee who 

becomes a candidate for election to the Board shall resign from the 
Committee immediately. (Part 3 Section 1: 3.1.2.A.G) 

B. An administrative staff person will serve on the Committee and will be

selected by the CEO. (Part 3 Section 1: 3.1.2.G) 

To the extent possible, tThe Nominations and Elections Committee 
(N&E) shall consist of the Chairperson, who shall be a Director, at 

least one (1) other Director on the Committee, and a minimum of 
two (2) members who shall represent various geographic areas to 

the extent possible. 

Any member of the Committee who becomes a candidate for 
election to the Board shall resign from the Committee immediately. 

Responsibilities 
A. Nominations

1. Determine the qualifications and eligibility of each candidate.
2. Submit a slate of qualified candidates to the Board at least ninety

(90) days prior to the Annual Meeting.
3. Post the slate of candidates to the membership no less than ninety

(90) days prior to the Annual Meeting and determine how

candidates shall be presented to the membership. 
4. Obtain names of candidates submitted by nomination petition to

the Secretary, within the deadline of sixty (60) days prior to the 
Annual Meeting, if any, and determine the qualifications and 

eligibility of same. Submit a slate of qualified petition candidates to 
the Board at least sixty (60) days prior to the Annual Meeting. 

B. Election Process

1. Recommend to the Board a record date to determine the eligible
roster of voting members which shall be no more than thirty (30)

days prior to the election. If the Board fails to set a record date,
the record date shall be the date of ballot delivery.

2. Submit the final slate of candidates for the ballot to the CEO.

3. Establish a list of members eligible to vote as of the record date
and provide this list to any outside agency conducting the election, 

if necessary. 

Style Definition: List Paragraph: Tab stops:  3.13", Left

Formatted: Right:  -0.13"

Formatted: Strikethrough

Commented [NM1]: Chair Dingman asked this be 
added here from strikethrough upper 
paragraph. 

Formatted: A., Justified, Indent: Left:  1", Right:  -0.13"

Commented [NM2]: Chair Dingman asked this be 
kept in but reworded to match #2. 

Attachment 8.A.6 - Redline

37



4. Establish the deadline for the return of ballots which shall be no
later than 4:00pm on a date at least five (5) days before the Annual 

Meeting. 
5. Verify that the final ballot and ballot materials have been reviewed

and approved by GVR’s General Counsel. 
6. The ballot reply shall display all information deemed necessary for

validation purposes for use by the Committee. 

7. Each candidate shall appoint two (2) GVR Members, who are in
good standing, to participate in the validation and counting of paper 

ballots. 
8. The counting of ballots, at the discretion of the Board may be

conducted by an independent organization (e.g., Pima County

Elections or electronic voting firm), in which case the results shall
be obtained from the organization by the Nominations and Elections

(N&E) Chairperson or their representative. (Bylaws Article V
Section 3)

C. Election Results

1. The Committee shall have the validation/counting process
completed at least two (2) business days prior to the date of the 

Annual Meeting or Special Meeting. 
2. At the conclusion of the election, obtain the results of the election,

including the establishment of a quorum. 
3. The Chairperson shall notify the Board Secretary of the results of

the election.

4. In the election of Directors, if there are fewer than fifty (50) valid
votes separating the last successful candidate and the first

unsuccessful candidate in the election, or less than a fifty (50) vote
difference on any other ballot issue, then the Board may, at its sole
discretion, order a recount.

5. The Committee Chairperson shall report the establishment of a
quorum and the election results at the Annual Meeting. Successful

candidates shall be announced in the order of the total votes
received. The results of the ballot for any other matters shall be
announced in the order in which the items appeared on the ballot.

D. Post-Election
At the conclusion of the election, the ballot materials and the results 

thereof shall be submitted to the CEO. The CEO will maintain these 
records for a period not less than three (3) years in accordance with the 
Arizona Nonprofit Corporation Act. 

E. Board Orientation & Training Election Forums for Members 
Arrange two (2) election forums for members to attend to hear the 

candidates answer questions arranged questions by the N&E Committee 
and questions from the members.   appropriate in-service training, as 
required, for the Board. Ensure that Board orientation programs are held 

annually. 

Commented [SS3]: Seems this is an election 
policy rather than a committee responsibility. Is 
there another section this can be moved to? 

Commented [NM4R3]:  Director Vacancies 

We could add to this in Part 2 – Director 
Election and Vacancies. Something like 
that. 

Commented [NM5]: Move E to D and D to E. 
Forums before Post-Election 

38



SECTION 6 - NOMINATIONS & ELECTIONS COMMITTEE 

 Committee Members 
To the extent possible, the Nominations and Elections Committee 
(N&E) shall consist of the Chairperson, who shall be a Director, at 
least one (1) other Director on the Committee, and a minimum of 
two (2) members who shall represent various geographic areas to 
the extent possible. 

Any member of the Committee who becomes a candidate for 
election to the Board shall resign from the Committee immediately. 

Responsibilities 
A. Nominations

1. Submit a slate of qualified candidates to the Board at least ninety
(90) days prior to the Annual Meeting.

2. Submit a slate of qualified petition candidates to the Board at least
sixty (60) days prior to the Annual Meeting.

B. Election Process
1. Recommend to the Board a record date to determine the eligible

roster of voting members which shall be no more than thirty (30)
days prior to the election. If the Board fails to set a record date,
the record date shall be the date of ballot delivery.

2. The counting of ballots, at the discretion of the Board may be
conducted by an independent organization (e.g., Pima County
Elections or electronic voting firm), in which case the results shall
be obtained from the organization by the Nominations and Elections
(N&E) Chairperson or their representative. (Bylaws Article V
Section 3)

C. Election Forums for Members
Arrange two (2) election forums for members to attend to hear the
candidates answer questions arranged by the N&E Committee and
questions from the members.

D. Election Results
1. The Chairperson shall notify the Board Secretary of the results of

the election.
2. The Committee Chairperson shall report the establishment of a

quorum and the election results at the Annual Meeting. Successful
candidates shall be announced in the order of the total votes
received. The results of the ballot for any other matters shall be
announced in the order in which the items appeared on the ballot.

Attachment 8.A.6 - Clean

39



2 

SECTION 7 - INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE 

3.7.1 Membership 
To the extent possible, tThe Investments Committee (IC) shall consist of at 
least two GVR Members who in addition to the IC Chairperson who shall be 

a Director. The IC Chairperson shall be nominated by the President with 
Board approval. The IC chairperson and IC Members should be 
knowledgeable in the investment of financial assets and, to the extent 

practical, experienced in investment management and/or investment 
oversight. 

3.7.2 Responsibilities 
A. The IC has the following specific responsibilities and duties with respect

to the IAs GVR Board Directed Reserves and the GVR Operational

Investment Accounts.  These accounts include Initiatives Reserve Fund
(IRF), Maintenance, Repair and Replacement Fund (MRR), Maintenance, 
Repair and Replacement Pools Fund (MRR B), and Emergency Fund 

(ERF).: 
1. Make timely recommendations to the Board concerning:

a. The hiring, termination, and replacement of the Investment 
Manager and/or Investment Adviser (collectively, the IM/IA) for 
each of the accounts that comprise the the IAsGVR Board 

Directed Reserve Accounts.. 
b. The terms and wording for any contract between GVR and an

IM/IA.
c. The specific wording and specifications for the Investment Policy

Statement (IPS) set forth in Appendix 1, Section 3 that governs

each of the accounts that comprise the IAs and any changes
theretoGVR Board Directed Reserves and GVR Operational

Investment Accounts.
2. Perform the following ongoing functions:

a. Complete due diligence and evaluation of each IM/IA at the end

of each quarter or more frequently, if requireddesired/needed?.
b. Monitor the IM/IAs to confirm compliance with the applicable

IPS.
3. Make timely reports, in accordance with the IPS, to the CFO, CEO,

and the Board of the following:

a. A serious and meaningful violation of the IPS.
b. A potential replacement of an existing IM/IA.

c. Any update requested by the Board.
4. Collaborate with the CEO/CFO concerning the following:

a. The invested Operational Funds regarding compliance with the
applicable IPS and performance. 

a.b. What information and analysis the CEO/CFO will provide to the IC for

the purpose of enabling the IC to perform its duties.
b.c. The specific actions required by the CEO/CFO in order to bring an IM/IA 

back into compliance with its applicable IPS. 
5. In the process of completing its duties, the IC will generate the

following documents:

a. An IPS for each of the accounts that comprise the IAsGVR Board

Commented [SS1]: Why doesn’t this also include 
“Operation Investment Accounts”? 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.38", Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

0.5" + Indent at:  0.75"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

1.38" + Indent at:  1.63"

Attachment 8.A.7 - Redline

40



3 

Directed Reserves and Operational Accounts.. 
b. An Investment Management Contract for each IM/IA hired by

GVR as signed and implemented by the GVR CEO Board
President.

c. Minutes of each meeting of the IC.

Commented [SS2]: Bylaws require the President 
to sign all contracts.  

41



2 

SECTION 7 - INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE 

3.7.1 Membership 
To the extent possible, the Investments Committee (IC) shall consist of at 
least two GVR Members who should be knowledgeable in the investment of 
financial assets and, to the extent practical, experienced in investment 
management and/or investment oversight. 

3.7.2 Responsibilities 
A. The IC has the following specific responsibilities and duties with respect

to the GVR Reserve and Operational Investment Accounts:
1. Make timely recommendations to the Board concerning:

a. The hiring, termination, and replacement of the Investment
Manager and/or Investment Adviser (collectively, the IM/IA) for
each of the accounts that comprise the Reserve Accounts.

b. The terms and wording for any contract between GVR and an
IM/IA.

c. The specific wording and specifications for the Investment Policy
Statement (IPS) set forth in Appendix 1, Section 3 that governs
each of the accounts that comprise the GVR Reserves and
Operational Investment Accounts.

2. Perform the following ongoing functions:
a. Complete due diligence and evaluation of each IM/IA at the end

of each quarter or more frequently, if desired/needed.
b. Monitor the IM/IAs to confirm compliance with the applicable

IPS.
3. Make timely reports, in accordance with the IPS, to the CFO, CEO,

and the Board of the following:
a. A serious and meaningful violation of the IPS.
b. A potential replacement of an existing IM/IA.
c. Any update requested by the Board.

4. Collaborate with the CEO/CFO concerning the following:
a. The invested Operational Funds regarding compliance with the

applicable IPS and performance.
b. What information and analysis the CEO/CFO will provide to the IC for the

purpose of enabling the IC to perform its duties.
c. The specific actions required by the CEO/CFO in order to bring an IM/IA

back into compliance with its applicable IPS.
5. In the process of completing its duties, the IC will generate the

following documents:
a. An IPS for each of the accounts that comprise the GVR Reserves

and Operational Accounts.
b. An Investment Management Contract for each IM/IA hired by

GVR as signed and implemented by the GVR Board President.
c. Minutes of each meeting of the IC.

Attachment 8.A.7- Clean

42



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Membership Change Fee 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: August 23, 2023 

Presented By: Carol Crothers, Chair Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 

Action Requested: 
Review the proposed wording change from the BAC in Part 1 Membership and Facilities, 
Section 1.1.6.B. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members 

Background Justification: 
The Membership Change Fee was discussed at the July 11, 2023, BAC meeting. 

The BAC voted to make a change to the CPM as a recommendation to the Board to be 
considered at the August 23, Regular Meeting of the Board.  

The FAC will review this recommended change at the FAC meeting on August 22, 2023. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Possible 

Board Options: 
1) Review and approve proposed wording for Part 1, Section 1.1.6.B.
2) Revise and amend to approve the proposed wording for Part 1, Section 1.1.6.B.

BAC Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the recommended wording from the Board Affairs Committee for the 
Corporate Policy Manual Part 1 Membership and Facilities: 1.1.6.B Membership Change Fee 
as follows: B. The Membership Change Fee shall be refunded to the GVR member owner of a 
sold primary residences who buys another primary residence within a 12-month period after 
presenting GVR with background material showing this was a change in primary residence.  

Staff Recommended Implementation/CPM Changes: 
If this motion is approved and moving forward, staff has drafted recommended changes to 
the CPM section 1.1.6 that further clarify this policy and how it will be administered. Having 
clearly defined guidelines will reduce confusion and allow staff to implement this plan and 
support Board policy. Staff recommends a start date of October 1, 2023. This will allow us 
time to create and update the appropriate documents, forms, website, and so forth. 

Action Item B.

43



Staff Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the recommended wording from staff for the Corporate Policy Manual Part 
1 Membership and Facilities: 1.1.6. Membership Change Fee as outlined in the attachment 
listed below. 

Attachments: 
1) Summary Provided by Chair Crothers

a. Property Acquisition Capital Fee (PACF)
b. Membership Fee History

2) CPM Part 1, Section 1.1.6.B Redline
3) CPM Part 1, Section 1.1.6.B Clean

44



Board of Directors Mee�ng 

Membership Change Fee 

Prepared by Carol Crothers, Chair of BAC 

Origina�ng Commitee:  BAC 

Ac�on Requested: Correct discriminatory, unauthorized language that was originally added to the CPM 
without Board approval and was counter the explana�on to the Membership and Real Estate community 
by our CEO.  The Board did approve a reorganiza�on of the CPM that includes this language, so our 
discriminatory prac�ce con�nues.  Board ac�on is required to change the language back to the original 
Board inten�on. 

Strategic Plan Goals:  4 and 5 

Background Jus�fica�on:  

 During the August 2019 Board meeting directors approved the following: 

“Amended Motion: GVR Board of Directors approve updates to the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) 
under Section II – Membership, Subsection 3. Annual Dues, Annual Dues Installment Payment Plan, 
Initial Fees, Fees for Services, E. New Member Capital Fee to add #2 and to change the name New 
Member Capital Fee to Property Acquisition Capital Fee, effective date October 1, 2019. (see Exhibit 3)” 

The following is Exhibit 3 with my highlights: 

SUGGESTED: E. New Member Capital Fee – adopted 12/17/2015 1. Upon transfer of title to a GVR 
membership property, the new owner thereof shall pay a New Member Capital Fee unless such owner 
was a GVR membership property owner at the time of the transfer or within twelve months prior 
thereto. 2. When purchasing 1 or more additional GVR membership properties, the new owner shall pay 
the New Member Capital Fee for each such additional property, except for transfer of title, as described 
in #1 of this section E. 3. Revenue from the New Member Capital Fees may be used as will most 
effectively further the general purpose of the Corporation to provide for current and future needs. 

During the September 2019 Board meeting the CEO included the following update on this change: 

“Update on Implementation of Property Acquisition Capital Fee.   At the August 28, 2019 Board meeting, 
Directors approved a major change to the New Member Capital Fee (NMCF). A portion of the NMCF is 
contributed to GVR Initiatives Reserves.  Beginning October 1, the name of the fee changes to ‘Property 
Acquisition Capital Fee’ (PACF) and will be applied to the purchase of all GVR member properties, except 
when a member moves from a primary GVR residence to another primary GVR residence within 12-
months, resulting in the following: o A GVR member may relocate between member properties without 
the burden of paying the fee multiple times. o GVR members who use GVR member properties as 
investments must pay the PACF.  PACF implementation guidelines are published and available in the 
West Center lobby at this meeting and at all staffed GVR Centers beginning this Friday.  Staff colleagues 
and I will present information about the Property Acquisition Capital Fee to local realtors at the monthly 
MLS meeting of the Green Valley/Sahuarita Association of Realtors on Tuesday, October 8.” 

Attachment 8.B.1

45



At some point the CPM was updated with the following language (highlights are mine showing that this 
language does not reflect what was voted on by the board or explained by the CEO): 

A. Property Acquisition Capital Fee (updated8/28/2019)
1. Upon transfer of title to a GVR membership property, the new owner shall

pay a PropertyAcquisition Capital Fee.
2. The GVR Member is entitled to a refund of the Property

Acquisition Capital Fee if the titleholder(s) own a single GVR member
ship  property and held title to a single GVR membership property
within 365 days prior.

3. When acquiring one or more additional GVR membership
properties, the new the new owner shall pay the Property Acquisition Capi
tal Fee for each such additional property, except for transfer of title,
as described in #2 of this section E.

4. Revenue from the Property Acquisition Capital Fees may be used as will
most effectively further the general purpose of the
Corporation to provide for current and future needs.

It is unknown who came up with this language since it doesn’t represent what was voted on by the 
board or explained by the CEO. Practice at that time was for the CEO to contact the corporate attorney 
to review the language for compliance with AZ law, but she claims she didn’t approve this. 

I move that the present board endorse the long-standing practice that a member should only have to 
pay a new member fee once even though they change their primary GVR residence (within a 12 month 
period).  The CPM language and administrative procedures should be corrected immediately to reflect 
the board and previous CEO’s understanding that a member should have to pay only one new member 
fee (or property acquisition fee or Member Change Fee) for their primary GVR residence if they changed 
homes within a 12 month period.  Owning additional properties should not make a difference.   

Historical Context: 

Initial Fee, the fee paid when a property first becomes a part of GVR.  This is primarily when a new home 
is purchased out of a GVR deed restricted subdivision (HOA).  It also occurs when a home owner decides 
to independently deed restrict a property that is within GVR boundaries.  This fee started in 1984 at 
$1000 with a $25 transfer fee. 

New Member Capital Fee (also called a Property Acquisition Fee and now a Member Change Fee) first 
occurred in 2000 at a cost of $450 with a transfer fee of $100.  This is a fee charged to a new member 
when they first join GVR by purchasing a property that has already paid an Initial Fee.  Until October 
2019, this fee only had to be paid once no matter how many properties were purchased. 

In 2015, Initial Fees had risen so fast that they violated the developer agreement on the maximum rate 
of increase so they had to be rolled back.  At the same time Transfer Fee language was clarified and our 
corporate attorney reinforce that the NMCF was appropriately an “admissions” fee.  See the meeting 

46



book for the December 2015 meeting on the website at 
www.gvrec.org/up/governance/bod/2015/1217/12172015%20BOD%20Exhibit%20Binder.pdf 

As stated above, in 2019, the Board decided to assess a fee (name changed to Property Acquisition 
Capital Fee) to multiple properties owned by a GVR member with the exception that the member could 
get a refund of the charge if the new property was a change of primary GVR address within 12 months. 

Financial Impact:  $5-15K/yr in additional refund fees 

Board Options: 

1. Approve BAC recommended correction to the CPM
2. Review, make changes to the recommendation, and approve the CPM change
3. Ask for additional input from the BAC

Staff Recommendation???? 

Recommended Motion:   

Honor the 2019 decision of the Board and explanation of the CEO by changing CPM 1.1.6 B. to “The 
Membership Change Fee shall be refunded to the GVR member owner of a sold primary GVR 
residence who buys another primary GVR residence within a 12-month period after presenting GVR 
with background material showing this was a change in primary GVR residence.” 

Attachments: 

1. Explanation of 2019 Board actions
2. History of GVR dues and fees

47

http://www.gvrec.org/up/governance/bod/2015/1217/12172015%20BOD%20Exhibit%20Binder.pdf


Attachment 8.B.1.a

48



49



50



51



52



53



Attachment 8.B.1.b

54



1.1.6 Membership Change Fee 

A. Upon transfer of title of a GVR membership property, the new owner shall pay a

Membership Change Fee.

Exemptions:

1. The Membership Change Fee shall not apply to the transfer of legal ownership

of a GVR deeded property from a trust if the resulting legal owners of the 

property are identical to the trustees of the trust immediately prior to the 

transfer. 

2. A person or legal entity who acquires ownership of a legal or beneficial interest

of the GVR property resulting from death, sells it within six (6) months of the 

date of death will be exempt from the Membership Change Fee (and Transfer 

Fee) provided they do not elect to utilize the facilities or have Tenants in the 

property who wish to utilize the facilities. 

A.B. The Membership Change Fee shall be refunded if the following apply: 

1. A Member has owned and occupied a GVR property within 365 days of transfer

of title, provided that the Member demonstrates that she/he has moved from 

one owner occupied primary GVR residence to another owner occupied primary 

GVR residence and has presented GVR with background material showing this 

was a change in primary residencenew owner was a GVR member within 365 

days prior to the transfer of title and owns no other GVR property. 

2. The Member(s) has owned and occupied the GVR property being sold for at

least one (1) year. 

3. A tenant card has not been issued on the property within the twelve (12)

months immediately prior to the sale of the owner-occupied property. 

4. The Member(s) submit a refund request for the MCF. GVR will review the

property transaction details to confirm ownership and eligibility for both 

properties. Refunds will be processed upon verification. 

B.C. The Membership Change Fee does not apply to the transfer of title for estate

purposes (e.g., into a trust).Revenue from the Membership Change Fee may be used

as will most effectively further the general purpose of The Corporation to provide for 

current and future needs. A portion of the revenue from Membership Change Fee is 

to be used to fund contributions to the Initiatives Reserve Fund as determined by the 

Board. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Segoe UI, Font color: Text 1

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.88"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Segoe UI, Font color: Text 1,

Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Segoe UI, Font color: Text 1,

Border: : (No border)

Attachment 8.B.2 - Redline

55



1.1.6 Membership Change Fee 
A. Upon transfer of title of a GVR membership property, the new owner shall pay a

Membership Change Fee.
Exemptions:
1. The Membership Change Fee shall not apply to the transfer of legal ownership

of a GVR deeded property from a trust if the resulting legal owners of the
property are identical to the trustees of the trust immediately prior to the
transfer.

2. A person or legal entity who acquires ownership of a legal or beneficial interest
of the GVR property resulting from death, sells it within six (6) months of the
date of death will be exempt from the Membership Change Fee (and Transfer
Fee) provided they do not elect to utilize the facilities or have Tenants in the
property who wish to utilize the facilities.

B. The Membership Change Fee shall be refunded if the following apply:
1. A Member has owned and occupied a GVR property within 365 days of transfer

of title, provided that the Member demonstrates that she/he has moved from
one owner occupied primary GVR residence to another owner occupied primary
GVR residence and has presented GVR with background material showing this
was a change in primary residence

2. The Member(s) has owned and occupied the GVR property being sold for at
least one (1) year.

3. A tenant card has not been issued on the property within the twelve (12)
months immediately prior to the sale of the owner-occupied property.

4. The Member(s) submit a refund request for the MCF. GVR will review the
property transaction details to confirm ownership and eligibility for both
properties. Refunds will be processed upon verification.

C. Revenue from the Membership Change Fee may be used as will most effectively
further the general purpose of The Corporation to provide for current and future
needs. A portion of the revenue from Membership Change Fee is to be used to fund
contributions to the Initiatives Reserve Fund as determined by the Board.

Attachment 8.B.3 - Clean

56



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Award Contract to Preventronics Security Cameras 
Prepared By: Randy Cheatham, IT Director Meeting Date: August 23, 2023 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
IT Department in collaboration with the office of the COO and the Facilities Director. 

Action Requested: 
Award contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, not to exceed 
$170,000. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities. 

Background Justification: 
Security concerns have not been a historical concern at GVR. However, it is a different time 
than before, and with an intrusion at Las Campanas in 2022, evidence of persons climbing 
over fences and walls into GVR facilities, insurance companies requesting video to defend 
claims of negligence against GVR, member to member conflicts in fitness rooms and pools, 
etc., staff and others agree that increased security is needed to mitigate risk and to ensure a 
safer environment for all GVR members, guests, visitors, and staff.  

Rather than surveillance cameras which are monitored by a surveillance company, and will 
likely be opposed by many GVR members, staff recommends security cameras be placed in 
strategic locations to help deter nefarious activity as well as provide evidence during an 
investigation. Video data can be pulled from the recommended cameras for review up to 
thirty days. If the data is not needed and therefore not pulled, the data will be written over 
with new data.  

Much thoughtful debate has occurred among the GVR Board and members regarding the 
possible benefits of a security camera system and the concerns for member privacy. The 
Board therefore directed Staff to conduct a survey of GVR members concerning the possible 
installation of security cameras.  

Survey Results Summary: 
• 1251 responses were collected between June 30 and July 18
• 67.23% of respondents are in favor of installing cameras
• 33.25% are not

Of those in favor of installing cameras: 
• 70.01% are in favor of cameras in parking lots and at entrances and walkways
• 14.47% are in favor of cameras at entrances and walkways only
• 2.22% are in favor of cameras in parking lots only

57



Staff previously reached out to three local companies, Preventronics, Titan Alarm, and 
Johnson Controls, for quotes for security cameras covering 14 centers, the Administrative 
Office, the Pickleball Center, the Del Sol Clubhouse, and the Facility Maintenance Building. 
Staff also priced similar cameras with a well-known online vendor, Verkada. After meeting 
with each local company and explaining the scope of work, each of the three local 
companies submitted bids. Verkada pricing for the cameras alone (less labor, less misc. 
switching and cabling, less yearly licensing) was much more costly and dropped from 
consideration.  

Preventronics is GVR’s current vendor for all DSX access control systems that operate all of 
the doors and gates. Their staff is familiar with every center throughout the campus and the 
needs and expectations of the GVR community. 

Staff therefore recommends awarding a contract to Preventronics for security camera 
provision and installation in an amount not to exceed $170,000. This amount is based on a 
scope of work that includes the installation of 131 cameras to cover the following locations: 
member entrances, lobbies, adjacent walkways, parking lots, fitness rooms, and 
swimming pools.  

Maintenance for the first year is included in the upfront cost. Annual cost thereafter is 
approximately $16,520 and would be budgeted as an operational expense going forward. At 
this time, staff does not know if the maintenance contract is needed but will have a better 
idea a year from now. The maintenance contract includes the following:  
• 4-hour service response time between 6am-6pm, M-F.
• Top priority service calls.
• Bi-annual inspections of all hardware/software and database maintenance.
• Software upgrades as necessary.
• All parts. (1 year)
• All labor. (1 year)

While the contract price is for $165,128, staff recommends allowing for additional 
contingency to cover unexpected costs or additional cameras should the need be warranted 
without the need to come back to the Board recommending a change order. 

Fiscal Impact: 
This capital expense was not budgeted. Staff recommends funds for this project be expended 
from the Initiatives Reserve Fund. 

Board Options: 
1) Award a contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, with a

scope of work to include member entrances, lobbies, adjacent walkways, parking lots,
fitness rooms, and swimming pools in an amount not to exceed $170,000.

2) Award a contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, with a
scope of work to include member entrances, lobbies, adjacent walkways, and parking
lots in an amount not to exceed $170,000, but with the understanding this amount will
be less since the scope of work has decreased.

3) Award a contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, with a
scope of work to include member entrances, lobbies, and adjacent walkways in an
amount not to exceed $170,000, but with the understanding this amount will be less

58



since the scope of work has decreased. 
4) Award a contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, with a

scope of work to include ____________, in an amount not to exceed $____________.
5) Provide alternate direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 

Recommended Motion: 
I move to award a contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, 
with a scope of work to include member entrances, lobbies, adjacent walkways, parking 
lots, fitness rooms, and swimming pools, in an amount not to exceed $170,000. 

Attachments: 
1) Draft contract with Preventronics

59



Attachment C.1

60



 
61



 
62



 
63



 
64



 
65



 
66



 
67



 
68



 
69



 
70



 
71



 
72



 
73



 
74



 
75



 
76



 
77



 
78



 
79



 
80



 
81



 
82



 
83



 
84



 
85



 
86



 
87



 
88



 
89



 
90



 
91



 
92



 
93



 
94



 
95



 
96



 
97



 
98



 
99



 
100



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Election of Board Officer – Assistant Treasurer 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: August 23, 2023 

Presented By: Marge Garneau, President Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Elect an Assistant Treasurer to the slate of Board Officers. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
The Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) includes Part 2: Board of Directors, Section 2 – Officers 
Election. The procedure in this section of the CPM will be followed at the August 23, 2023, 
Regular Meeting for electing the replacement of the Assistant Treasurer due to the 
resignation of Laurel Dean, who filled this position. 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Attachments: 
1) CPM Part 2: Board of Directors, Section 2 – Officers Election

Action Item D.

 
101



SECTION 2 - OFFICER ELECTIONS 

2.2.1 General 
A. Election of Board Officers will be done by secret ballot. This is

applicable to both the nominating ballots and the electing ballots.
B. Nominations from the floor will not be accepted.
C. Election for each office follows its seniority in the Bylaws:

President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant
Secretary, and Assistant Treasurer.

D. The current President, or in his/her stead, the CEO shall
administer the election until the new President has been elected.

2.2.2 The Nominating Ballot 
A. The President will ask that nominating ballots be distributed to

each Director.
B. Each Director receiving a vote is nominated for that office.
C. A nominating ballot cannot take the place of an electing ballot.
D. Directors may nominate themselves for any Board office.
E. Nominees must verbally indicate their willingness to serve before

the electing ballot is distributed.
F. The Chair will announce the names of the nominees and the

number of nominations each received prior to the distribution of
electing ballots.

2.2.3 The Electing Ballot 
A. A nominee is considered “elected” if he/she receives a majority of

the votes cast.
B. Balloting should be repeated as many times as necessary to

obtain a majority vote for one candidate. The nominee receiving
the lowest number of votes is never removed from the next ballot.

C. If a stalemate persists, the rules may be suspended in order to
consider alternatives such as eliminating the candidate with the
lowest number of votes. The motion to suspend the rules is not
debatable and requires a 2/3 vote to pass.

Attachment D.1

 
102


	1 08232023 BOD Reg Mtg Agenda
	2 Consent Agenda 7.A.1 06282023 Reg Mtg Minutes Draft
	3 Consent Agenda 7.B.1 Financial Stmts - July-June-May 2023
	4 Action Item A Staff Report CPM Part 3 Cmte Responsibilities
	5 Attachment 8.A.1 CPM PART 3 General Redlined
	6 Attachment 8.A.1 CPM PART 3 General Clean
	PART 3: COMMITTEES
	SECTION 1 – GENERAL


	7 Attachment 8.A.2 BAC Redlined
	8 Attachment 8.A.2 BAC Clean
	SECTION 2 - BOARD AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
	3.1.1      Committee Members
	The Board Affairs Committee shall consist of the Chairperson, who shall be a Director, and GVR members who should have knowledge of Corporate Bylaws and Policies.

	9 Attachment 8.A.2.a BAC Part 6 CLUBS Redlined
	10 Attachment 8.A.2.a BAC Part 6 CLUBS Clean
	SECTION 2 - GVR CLUBS

	11 Attachment 8.A.3 FAC Redlined
	12 Attachment 8.A.3 FAC Clean
	SECTION 3 – FISCAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

	13 Attachment 8.A.4 P&E Redlined
	14 Attachment 8.A.4 P&E Clean
	SECTION 4 – PLANNING & EVALUATION COMMITTEE

	15 Attachment 8.A.5 Audit Redlined
	16 Attachment 8.A.5 Audit Clean
	SECTION 5 - AUDIT COMMITTEE

	17 Attachment 8.A.6 N&E Redlined
	18 Attachment 8.A.6 N&E Clean
	SECTION 6 - NOMINATIONS & ELECTIONS COMMITTEE

	19 Attachment 8.A.7 Investments Redlined
	20 Attachment 8.A.7 Investments Clean
	SECTION 7 - INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE

	21 Action Item B Staff Report Membership Change Fee
	22 Attachment 8.B.1. Summary Provided by Chair Crothers
	A.  Property Acquisition Capital Fee (updated8/28/2019)

	23 Attachment 8.B.1.a Property Acquisition Cap Fee (PACF) Chair Crothers
	24 Attachment 8.B.1.b Membership & Fee History Chair Crothers
	25 Attachment 8.B.2 Change Fee CPM 1.1.6.B Redline
	26 Attachment 8.B.3 Change Fee CPM 1.1.6.B Clean
	27 Action Item C Staff Report Award Contract Approval for Security Cameras
	28 Attachment C.1 Preventronics Security Camera Contract Draft
	29 Action Item D Staff Report Board Officer Assistant Treasurer Election
	30 Attachment D.1 CPM Part 2 Board of Directors Election of Officers
	SECTION 2 - OFFICER ELECTIONS

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



